
Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

1

CARLIN CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF CARLIN, STATE OF NEVADA

REGULAR MEETING
CARLIN CITY HALL

101 SOUTH EIGHTH STREET
CARLIN, NEVADA

September 24, 2014, 7:00 p.m.

Call to Order and Roll Call:
Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner called the meeting of the City Council to order at 7:00 p.m.
Council Members Present:  Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner

Councilperson Jay Duke
Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield

                                    Absent: Mayor Cliff Eklund
Councilperson Bob DeMars

1. Administrative Staff: City C lerk LaDawn Lawson, Police Chief Bill Bauer , City Engineer Tom 
Ballew

2. Present:  Jim Brown,  Rick Anderson , Anna Dean,  B ill  Bodin, Pam Griswold, Ben  Smith,  Rick 
Anderson, Roger Anderson, Steve Wilkinson, Dennis Fobes, Karen Carr, James T. Brian, Tyler 
Thomas, Floyd Dewey, Fred Montes de Oca, Anna Dean , Dana  Holbrook, Jennifer Bingaman, 
Bethany Rakestraw, Ronie Waddell, Eole Pacini.

Pledge of Allegiance

Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner welcomed the high school students.

I.Review, discussion and possible approval of  a request to wa i ve curb gutter and sidewalk at 1601 Puett 
Street, and all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Pam Griswold  st ated  they are seeking a waiver for curb, gutter and sidewalk on  the Puett  side. 

She stated they have a permit to put in a detached garage and the permit is approved and the 
concrete work is done, as well as the walk.  She noted the estimated cost is $6 , 200.00 
explaining they have other projects they are going to be doing.  

2. Councilperson Jay Duke corrected the amount to $6,700.00
3. Pam Griswold discussed the curb and gutter on Mutchler  Street  and that is the only curb and 

gutter in that area.  
4. Councilperson Jay Duke inquired  when they plan to do their other projects.  He suggested that 

they amend this to read that the curb, gutter and sidewalk would have to be completed by 
September 2015.

5. Pam Griswold agreed, stating the last concrete work they do would be the curb, gutter and 
sidewalk so that they are “not rolling over new concrete”.  She explained they would want to 
put in a shop and build on to the front of the house.  

6. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  stated she met with him about this and it has to be a waiver 
for two streets as this is a corner lot.  He stated the curb and gutter would go along Chestnut 
and Puett  and looking at the Chestnut side the amount of work that would have to be done on 
Chestnut is “quite intense”.  He stated he has no problem with waiving that at this time until it 
comes up that it is feasible to do the Chestnut side.  He agreed with Councilperson Jay Duke on 
an August 31, 2015.

7. Pam Griswold stated she would prefer September 20, 2015 before the snow.  
8. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  stated  if they put that off until September 30 and Public 

Works has to come in with the asphalt and something happens.  He stated that would give 
Public Works a month to do what they had to.

9. Pam Griswold agreed.



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

2

10. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield   moved  for   approval of  wa i v ing  curb gutter and 
sidewalk  along Chestnut Street and allow an extension of the sidewalk on Puett until 
August 31, 2015,  and all related matters.  Councilperson Jay Duke  seconded the motion.   
The motion carried with Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner voting in favor.

II.Review ,   d iscussion  and possible approval of  adjusting the Capital Improvement Fees for Water and 
Sewer for Motels and Hotels, and all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Ben Smith  reported  they are very eager to work with the City and hope “you are going to be on 

a roll with the waivers”.  He stated they do appreciate the Council looking at the fees.
2. Tom Ballew reported  he sent an email to City Manager David Jones who had asked him to look 

into the fees.  He stated he compared with the City of Elko at their website and calculated the 
fees assuming you were building in Elko.  He stated he had to make a few assumptions on 
fixture counts.  He state d  the City of Elko based on those assumptions would be around $200  
, 000 and the Cit y of Carlin would be about $165, 000.   He stated he has a spreadsheet that tries 
to calculate water use and he needs to make them understand that the third item is not supported 
by Carlin’s Code.  He stated these are in house numbers, but he came up with about $80,000 
based on that calculation.  He inquired if the City Council is willing to listen to this gentleman 
and make some adjustments into their fees or not.  “I cannot answer that for you, but I am just 
trying to give you some information that might help you make your decision”.

3. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield   confirm ed  that a comparable hotel going into Elko would be 
roughly $200,000 if they use this formula providing that the City Council of Elko says give 
them a break.

4. Tom Ballew replied, “That is correct, using the Elko City Code”.
5. Councilperson Jay Duke stated there were several factors going down the spreadsheet.
6. Tom Ballew stated those were City Manager David Jones’. He explained the City Code applies 

a value to a hotel room of .5 x a residential unit and what he was trying to look at is “let’s see 
what it is at .4, .3 or .2 and that was what he was doing.     The real question I think is how do 
you feel about it; it is your code and I am certainly not here to criticize your code; our job is to 
make sure…”

7. Councilperson Jay Duke  stated, “W e do not want to sho o t ourselves in the  foot; we have 
assessment fees, permit fees, impact fees, room tax and to narrow it down to the impact fees are 
charged as they impact the infrastructure of the municipal, in this case the water and sewer”. 
He noted he wished City Manager David Jones was present to explain what would be right. 

8. Ben Smith inquired if he felt the facility was not adequate to support the structure.
9. Councilperson Jay Duke stated revenue is generated through a process and in this case, those 

fees are used for upgrade services, etc.  He stated, “We would not attract you to this city if we 
weren’t able to service you”.

10. Tom Ballew inquired, “Did you just say the City crew would pay to bring the line in”.
11. Councilperson Jay Duke stated, “”We would dig the lines, ditches and things like that”.
12. Tom Ballew stated the City would be paid for that. He stated that is their responsibility.  I just 

wanted to clarify that. 
13. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated he talked to City Manager David Jones and what he 

said to me was that he was putting a .25 , . 35,  . 45 ,  and .55 so that the Council could see it on a 
spreadsheet to understand.   He stated he would have some questions for Public Works Director 
Carlos Esparza if he was present.  He stated this is going to be about the same size as the Carlin 
Inn.  

14. Ben Smith stated, A little larger”.
15. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield inquired about the Carlin Inn being increased by two to Steve 

Wilkinson.
16. Steve Wilkinson stated the sewer would not be running at 80%.  “It would not take much more 

than it is doing right now”. 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

3

17. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated he thinks they are doing themselves an injustice if we 
do not try  to  attract business es  to Carlin.  He stated if we have to utilize some of our funds 
along with your funds,  “ I   think that is what we need to do to continue the growth .  I hate to see 
us not do this for a couple of thousand dollars”.

18. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated, “They need to give these guys an incentive and Carlin  has  
been sitting on our hands for a long time waiting for businesses to come here and now that we 
have the opportunity to bring someone in, we need to give them some incentive.  Having them 
pay a tremendous amount when we actually can cut it a little bit so it is more feasible for them , 
we would be shooting ourselves  in the foot.  She stated they are taking a chance coming into 
our city at this time and our City is going to change by leaps and bounds and we need to have 
this here now”.  

19. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he does not disagree and appreciates Tom Ballew’s time.   He 
stated he is not sure what number is fair, as he would not like to see it reduced drastically.

20. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated, “If the Best Western does not go in on the lot, then we 
have a dustbowl generating no income”.

21. Ben Smith stated their projections of taxes are going  to amount  between $200,000 and 
$300,000 a year and we are not dancing a jig to pay that.  We anticipate paying that”.  

22. Councilperson Jay Duke stated, “That is room tax money  that  is earmarked for the Equestrian 
Park and Parks & Rec.  He stated they cannot use it for capital improvement.  

23. Tom Ballew stated it is a NRS statute.
24. Ben Smith stated, “So you cannot change that”.
25. Karla Jones inquired what it was before the 2013 statute; what was it prior to that.   “You  were  

the only one on the board Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner that was here”.
26. Tom Ballew stated the code was basically written for residential; we did not have motels or 

hotels in mind at the time.  
27. Karla Jones inquired if it was written for meters.
28. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated it was written for residential.
29. Tom Ballew stated meters are geared toward monthly consumption, not capital improvement 

fees.  The schedule that is in the code says “1 hotel room is equal to” has been in the code 
forever.  He noted what has changed is the amount charged for water and sewer, $2 , 100 and $1  
,745.  He stated it is per residential unit, which the businesses are compared to the residential.

30. Discussion about the past monies was discussed.
31. Karla Jones stated if that previous amount attracted the businesses would it not work now.
32. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated they need to do what they are going to do and they should 

not alter it.
33. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson discussed the Utility Fund.
34. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated they should not go back to those figures, but “we need to 

see what we can do for this company .  She stated she thin k s they should use the .2 number or 
$66,000”.

35. Dana Holbrook stated, “I do not think we should put these people off, I think it is nice to attract 
these people.  This may be a good one to table rather than pulling a number out of the air”.

36. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated, “We are not  doing this  out of the air, we have figures in 
front of us.  The whole idea is to decide if we want to give them a deal to come into town or if 
we want to stay with what we have”.

37. Councilperson Jay Duke stated, “2.2”
38. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated, somewhere between 1 and 2 would be fine.
39. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated, “This is not something we have to do over and over; this 

is an incentive to help this company come to Carlin.  She stated this shows that we are here to 
help these people get started”.

40. Ben Smith stated his appreciation for them considering this.  He stated they have a lot of 
properties, but they are budgeted carefully so they can sustain themselves.



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

4

41. Pam Griswold inquired about the sewer capacity and they have a lot of new homes  coming  and  
with  the  water bill going up every year, so how long is it going to be until the City has a lift 
station that would accommodate these new businesses.   She stated she wants to ensure the City 
can handle what the City is bringing in.  

42. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated we would not bring them if we could not handle it.
43. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated City Manager David Jones is searching for the cost of it and 

the money and there is no date.
44. Chief Bauer stated in talking to David Jones, it is about $1 million, inquiring where all that 

money is going to come from.   He stated if they continue to give vast breaks, we  should give  
help, but if it is too much where does the money come f rom f or the lift station when you start 
eating into your operational funds, your contingency funds to where there is nothing left.  He 
stated the whole idea on an impact fee is to minimize the impact and as people come in, they 
are going to have to pay it, because we cannot continue to pay for everybody’s expansion at the 
expense of the citizens that are already here.  He stated for council’s consideration, there is 
something that needs to be addressed beyond his desire and obviously our desire to have him 
here.  He is going to have to pay a certain amount of expense as the price of doing business and 
that protects the city”.  

45. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated there is some confusion and maybe Tom Ballew can answer 
this better, the capital improvement is separate from the water fees every month.   She noted the 
water fee pays for the utility of pumping the water, but the capital improvement fees are for 
infrastructure, etc.

46. Tom Ballew stated capital improvement is for wells, replacement of old pumps and the monthly 
bill is supposed to pay for the ongoing operation and maintenance.  He noted, “One way to look 
at it is that all of the people in Carlin for many years have paid for the tank and the well and the 
sewer station and they have paid for that for years.  We have new people coming in that have 
no vested interest in that infrastructure, so the capital improvement is to be used for the best 
interest of the town also.  Do you believe that the code is incorrect when it says a hotel room is 
in reality ½  of a residential unit or do you believe that you want to try to attract the businesses, 
which I think is your  point?   He stated he believes the .5 is a little high and he does not know if 
he would go to .2, but he agrees .5, it is a little high.  He stated it would require a code change”.

47. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated “If this was the second thing that had come to Carlin that 
would help us get out of the hole that we are in, I think we should consider it.  This company is 
going to be ….I think the people are watching us to see how we are going to handle this.  If we 
want this town to continue to grow, we have to stop saying we are not going to let people come 
in.  If we want this to happen, we should give incentive to the few and we do not have to give it 
to everybody.  The few that have started to come in, I think we need to give them an incentive. 
If there are some down the line that want to come in we would charge them the whole thing; 
there would be no reason not to”.   

48. Pam Griswold inquired about the sewer lift station at the trailer park.  Did it meet code and is 
the City paying for that”.

49. Steve Wilkinson stated it is not the City’s it belongs to the owner of the trailer park.  He stated, 
“When I first came on it would take 30 minutes for the station to come on, now it comes on 
every 10 minutes”.

50. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated this money would help with the station.
51. Eole  Pacini  inquired if  all the sewage goes to the sewer pond and noted she has problems with 

the sewer at her house.   She stated she has “water coming from it; I have backup coming from 
it and it is not from my sewer line. My sewer line is clean, but it backs up and I go out every 3- 
4  days with  a sewer smell in my house and even my water has that smell.   I think you should 
also think about fixing the sewer  lines in  town that have been there for 100 years.  I have been 
having problems for 2 years.”

52. Vice Mayor Donnetta Sk inner stated they would have  Public Works Director Carlos Esparza 
tell them about that.  



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

5

53. Eole  Pacini stated, “If you are going to have more sewer going into the sewer pond, you have to 
fix it”.

54. Councilperson Jay Duke stated the sewer smell usually comes f r om something within the house. 

55. Eole Pacini stated they have had Public Works Director Carlos Esparza come out.
56. Karla Jones stated, “You commented that maybe the ordinance was for residential only, so 

maybe you could look at that and do one for commercial. Because you are saying you are  going 
to  give a break to the first guy and maybe the second guy and possibly the third, then charge the 
next 4-6 the full rate.  I don’t think that is right either”. 

57. Fred Montes de Oca stated the project going across the freeway is  not  going to help with the 
sewer problems we are having”.

58. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner noted, “It should put a lot of money in our coffers; it should”.
59. Fred Montes de Oca stated, “You have the money now, but sooner or later something is going 

to have to be done and so I think you ought to really look at this and try to help this gentleman, 
but you don’t want to overspend.  He is probably wanting to get going on this.  Something is 
going to have to be done regardless”.

60. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated City Manager David Jones is investigating that currently.
61. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she does not think this station is going to stop.  She does 

not think that will be the problem.  She thinks this has been talked about before and it is 
something that is going to be worked on and has been.

62. Ben Smith stated the one question that was asked was whether a hotel room is equivalent to ½ a 
residential unit and he would argue that it is not even close because the average house might 
have 2-5 people and some of those tend to be there a  great deal of time.   He noted,  “you may 
have one (1) person who is there for a couple of hours and will have wakeful time”, but the load 
they would put on the water and sewer is a great deal less than a typical family and residential 
unit.  He stated people are not going to be “hanging out in the hotel”.  He stated it is his job to 
determine what the cost of business is and how that enables them to make money.  He noted 
they do not pick the town because “they just love the town, but because it is good for business 
and has all of the makings necessary for a good relationship between  the community and us ”. 
He stated he does not want to come across as saying “If you don’t do what we want, we are not 
coming to your town”.  He stated they are trying to get the lowest cost of business as they can.  

63. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he was originally at 2.5 but leaning more toward the 15% range.
64. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated 1/3 would be $55,000.
65. Ben Smith stated he would like to have requested a .1, but he will take it back to the partners.
66. C ouncilperson Lincoln Litchfield   moved  for   approval  of  adjusting the Capital 

Improvement Fees for Water and Sewer for  the  Motel / Hotel  adjacent to the Build A 
Burger on Fir Street to be .2 at $66,006.00 s   and all related matters .   Councilperson Jay 
Duke seconded the motion.

67. Tom Ballew confirmed the figure of .2%.
68. The motion carried unanimously with Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner voting in favor.

III.Review, discussion and possible approval of the Union Contract between International Union of 
Operating Engineers Local 3 and the City of Carlin and all related matters.    (Possible Action 
Item)
1. Bill Bodin reported the language has been corrected.
2. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she liked the revision of the contract.
3. Councilperson Jay Duke moved  approval of the Union Contract between International 

Union of Operating Engineers Local 3 and the City of Carlin and all related matters . 
Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield seconded the motion.   The motion carried with Vice 
Mayor Donnetta Skinner voting in favor.  



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

6

IV.Review  and  discussion and possible direction from the Council regarding the Carlin Police 
Department Proposal for Administrational change in the City of Carlin ,  and all related 
matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Chief Bauer   reported that  following the meetings he has had with his department,  Dennis Fobes  

 came  to him and had given this a lot  of consideration  and  he would  like to try  managing this 
department.  He stated the Council must send Mr. Fobes to a management school and he will do 
whatever he can to help the transition, because this training is critical.   He stated Mr. Fobes 
would do a fine job.  

2. Dennis Fobes inquired if they had questions.
3. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he has some questions that he would pose after Mr. Fobes says 

why he is willing to accept the position.  
4. Dennis Fobes stated, “Because I want it”.
5. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner  stated,  the City was hoping that he would put his name in.  She 

stated it is a big step, but because of the job he has done in the community, the Council does 
have confidence in him.  She noted they have been waiting to see if he would say yes or no and 
thinks everyone is pleased.  

6. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield inquired how long he has been an officer in Carlin.
7. Dennis Fobes stated, “10.5 years”.
8. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  stated  he has seen Mr. Fobes act “very honorably” and thinks 

he would do an “excellent job as Chief”.  He stated he is a big proponent of the schooling.
9. Dennis Fobes  stated  they would have to fill his position and  they would have to  work some 

overtime.   He noted that hopefully with the council’s help they can get the pay up where they 
could keep the officers a little longer. 

10. Councilperson Jay Duke stated hiring someone who lives in Carlin is a big plus.
11. Dennis  Fobes stated   that his dad was  the  Chief of  Police  in Elko for 12 years, his uncle was a 

sergeant and his other uncle was a sergeant. 
12. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner inquired how he feels about being sent to school.
13. Dennis Fobes responded positively.
14. Discussion was held on the 10-12 week school period and the fact that Chief Bauer has agreed 

to stay on until he completes that course.  
15. Chief Bauer stated they are looking at Northwestern Police Staff and Command school for 10 

weeks and is one of three (3) top schools in the country and is right there with the FBI National 
Academy and one other.  He stated they are home-based in Evanston ,  Illinois, but ever year 
they do 2-3 road show s , taking their staff  to other cities  and in 2015 they are taking it to 
Henderson, which would save considerable cost for travel.  He stated the downside to that 
would be it is two (2) weeks and then back 2 weeks.  It takes a little longer to do it that way. 
He stated the retention is larger and the 10 weeks school is equivalent to one year of college 
and is very intense.

16. Councilperson Jay Duke  moved for approval of  the City Staff to take  direction  to make 
the necessary changes for  Dennis Fobes, and all related matters.   Councilperson Lincoln 
Litchfield  seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously  with Vice Mayor 
Donnetta Skinner voting in favor.

V.Review, discussion and possible approval of the Parcel Map, as requested by the City of Carlin for 
APN 002-210-039, recorded at file number 667849 and all related matters.   (Possible Action 
Item)
1. Karla Jones stated this is the map for the sale of land and it was an easy matter for the city.
2. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated this is in the Industrial Park just north of the  3 D 

Concrete and this will open up more property to the west end.     
3. Councilperson Jay Duke moved for  approval of  the Parcel Map, as requested by the City 

of Carlin for APN 002-210-039, recorded at file number 667849  and all related matters.     
Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously   



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

7

with Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner voting in favor.

VI.Review, Discussion and possible approval of the minutes for August 4, 2014 and all related matters.  
(Possible Action Item)
1. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield moved for   approval of the minutes for August 4, 2014 

and all related matters.   Councilperson Jay Duke seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried with Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner voting in favor. 

VII.Review , discussion  and possible approval of payments for the periods  09/10/2014 to 09/27/2014 ,  and 
all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield inquired  about  the payment  for Crimestar Corporation for 

$1,200.  
2. Chief Bauer stated it is a maintenance  contract  for customer support for the records 

management system. 
3. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  moved for  ap proval of payments for the periods  

09/10/2014 to 09/27/2014 ,  and all related matters.  Councilperson Jay Duke   seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried with Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner voting in favor.

VIII.City Council Members’ Reports.
City Council Members report on issues, concerns and events regarding Public 
Safety, Public Works, Planning Commission, Parks & Recreation, Senior Center, 
Cemetery and other matters of interest
(Non-Action Item)

1. Councilperson Jay Duke  reported  h e attended the  NNRDA meeting , asking City Clerk LaDawn 
Lawson to put a hyperlink on the agenda with all of the data surrounding that .   He stated it 
would make it easier for his IPad. 

2. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated she would look into that.
3. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  reported that  Chapters 19, 20 and 21 were given to Elizabeth  

Pinne  to distributed to the rest of the Planning Commission, noting there are 26 chapters overall. 
He encouraged people to read it as it has taken many people many years to update this.

4. Councilperson Jay Duke   distributed copies of the Housing Assessment with some pretty good 
demographic information.  

5. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she would pass on a report.

IX.        City Clerk’s Report. (Non – Action Item)
1. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson had no report.

X.        City Manager’s Report (Non-Action Item)
           Absent

XI.Comments by the General Public: Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2C) this time is devoted to comments by 
the general public and discussion to those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter 
raised under this item until the matter has been included on a successive agenda and 
identified as an action item. (Non-Action Item).

1. Rick Anderson  stated  the  clean - up of Carlin came up several times in the Candidates Forum. 
He stated some of the apartments ’   owners  should be contacted to clean - up their land.   He stated 
it looks terrible near the school and start with some of the businesses  that  are not stepping up. 
He stated he was glad to hear there were more people who were concerned. 

2. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated maybe they should hold a Fall Clean-Up.
3. Rick Anderson stated they do need to send out letters to get people to “step up”.
4. Chief Bauer stated, On Monday this week the resident manager of those apartments has been 

hired by the owners, Knowles ,  to manage the property, including the yards.  He stated the  



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

8

manager has come into his office a couple of times to get information, noting he seems to be 
“sincere and that is a start”.

5. Ronnie Waddell stated “Even if there is a second clean - up, the City has cut what they would 
take and the small hours  they  are going to be open, making it impossible for anybody to clean 
up”.

6. Roger Anderson inquired why they could not haul it out themselves.
7. Discussion was held on refrigerators.
8. Rick Anderson stated he disagrees, because he takes his stuff to the dump or to the City and 

they do not have a problem taking it.  He stated it is a personal responsibility to take care of 
their stuff.

9. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield agreed, noting he will put out a number of trash bags and  they  
take 4-5 of them each week.  

10. Ronnie Waddell stated the week of the city clean -up they h ave been so many restrictions placed 
on it.  

11. Hilary Kinney and Shania Harris introduced themselves.  
12. Councilperson Jay Duke  commented  they want to make this an individual thing to make  people 

accountable and the clean-up weeks are a good idea.  
13. Discussion was held on the ordinance and fining people.
14. Eole Pacini spoke about the alleys and streets that are fire hazards with the trash.
15. Rick Anderson stated he has noticed a few that have cleaned - up.  He stated we need people like 

this to complain every time.  
16. Councilperson Jay Duke stated the Carlin Voice is hearing.
17. Rick Anderson stated it would improve your property value if you make your neighbor clean up. 

Record it.  He stated he would rather pay $10 an hour to clean up than pay a $50 fine.   
18. Dana Holbrook stated if you try to take a load on Friday morning t he dumpster is usually full 

and you cannot dump it.
19. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated th e y need to know the times they are open and follow the 

rules.  
20. Steve Wilkinson stated the most people do not call or read the sign or they don’t even stop 

when they come down.  He noted Elko Sanitation comes 3 times a week.
21. Discussion was held on the charges to the city.
22. Steve Wilkinson stated the sign says they are not open f ro m 11:30 a.m. to 12 noon and people 

come at 5 minutes to 12 and beep.  
23. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson and Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated the y could put a  

messages on the utility bill postcard.
24. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield inquired what it costs the city for a cleanup week.  
25. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated she would have to research that.
26. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated he is not opposed to a second clean up week.
27. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated it was “big money” the City had to pay because they had a 

lot.  
28. Rick Anderson stated they pay by the weight at the Elko dump.
29. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated that Rick Anderson has started something by bringing 

it up to the Council all the time.  He stated he is keeping the subject alive to the public. 
30. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated there are citizens that deliberately wait  for clean up  because 

they do not want to pay the $5.00 and they pile up this junk so they can have it taken for free.  
31. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated it is a landlord’s responsibility if a renter is doing that.
32. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated everyone could be a more diligent.
33. Bill Bodin stated it has to be the council who helps everybody; some people cannot get their 

garbage done.  He stated they have good city employees to help with the problem.   He stated it 
is going to grow.  



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      September 24, 2014

9

34. Pam Griswold  stated  there are a lot of senior citizens who cannot clean - up.  She stated there 
should be a knock on the door asking if they have garbage to be picked up.  She stated it has to 
be a team to clean up a block at a time.

35. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner  stated  she and Darla Baldwin do  c lean - up week and go to every 
senior citizen and ask what we can get rid of.  She stated the city crew knows when they follow 
us around that they do whatever they have to do to clean it up.  She stated the city crew has 
never complained when it has been a senior citizen who needed extra work done.  She stated 
doing it twice a year might be a good idea.  She noted the City Crew does most of the work. 
She stated they should give citations, noting it is $100.00.  

36. Pam Griswold inquired how much time they have.
37. Chief Bauer stated they do not have any time, they can cite them the next day. He stated the 2 nd  

time is $250 and the  3 rd   time is  $500.  He stated some of them would find out that it is cheaper 
to hire someone to clean it up than pay the fines.  He noted several of these mentioned are  i n 
litigation.  He explained when they get a call, they generate a complaint and that goes to Josh 
and he talks to the people and if they do not comply, he issues citations.      He noted it is a good 
system, but it all starts when people call or complain on specifically where and what it is. 

38. Roger Anderson stated, “What a good way to pay for our City’s sewer.”
39. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated Elko Sanitation is really good about working with the public 

and if they are contacted for something, they might charge, but they will pick it up. 
40. Discussion was held that people do not call, but just put that trash out and Elko Sanitation will 

take it.
41. Fred Montes de Oca inquired if Q&D is still buying the property  that was sold to them  year ago. 

42. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated positively that they are.
43. Discussion was held on signage.
44. Discussion was held on the Barrick parking lot.

XII.        Adjournment. (Action Item)
Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  moved for adjournment with  Councilperson Jay Duke   
seconding the motion.  The motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m.

APPROVED:

DONNETTA SKINNER, VICE MAYOR

ATTEST:

_____________________________
CITY CLERK LADAWN LAWSON


